

## **EOS Investment Management Group**

# ESG Policy Clean Energy Strategy

# Policy Relating to Resource Usage & Management

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED - This document is the exclusive property of EOS Investment Management Ltd, which reserves all rights thereto. Therefore, this document may not be copied, reproduced, communicated or disclosed to others or used in any way, without written permission of EOS Investment Management Ltd, and upon request it shall be promptly returned to EOS Investment Management Ltd - 67 Grosvenor Street, London W1K 3JN.

EOS Investment Management Group

## Table of Contents

Table	e of Contents2
1.	Introduction3
2.	Purpose4
3.	Resource, Emissions & Products4
4.	Stages and Impact5
5.	Addressing and Minimising Impacts6
5.1 B	aseline Requirements 6
5.1.1	Pre-Development Planning Process
5.1.2	Power Plant Authorisation / Permitting Process
5.1.3	Due Diligence
5.2 E	SG Operational Requirements during Phases of Investment
5.2.1	Energy Consumption / Management
5.2.2	Water Consumption & Management10
5.2.3	Green House Gas Emissions and Management10
5.2.4	Waste Management11
5.2.5	Other Emissions11
5.2.6	Products, including Components and Building Materials12
6.	Change Management & Policy Review13

## 1. Introduction

The purpose of this policy is to outline the approach to be taken by EOS Investment Management Ltd ("**EOS IM**") and the wider EOS IM Group in relation to various aspects related to the renewable clean energy strategy at the Portfolio Company level and the Environmental Social and Governance ("**ESG**") approach to the utilisation and management control of resources.

This resource usage and management policy (the "**Policy**") supports the EOS IM Group overarching ESG Policy (the "**ESG Policy**").

EOS IM and the wider EOS IM Group, considers Responsible Investment ("**RI**") and hence ESG to be a central to its investment ethos. As a fund manager, EOS IM defines RI as a strategy and practice to facilitate and incorporate ESG factors in investment decisions and manage these investments through active ownership.

EOS IM's ESG framework, through its methodology and approach, is designed to align with and applies (where applicable) the requirements arising from the "EU SFDR", Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector. The ESG framework also takes note of the provision of other relevant EU Regulations, such as the Regulation (EU) 852/2020 on the establishment of a framework to facilitate sustainable investments known as "EU Taxonomy".

The infrastructure in renewable energy strategy includes EOS Energy Fund II S.C.A. SICAV-RAIF (the "**Fund**"), which is at the time of this Policy categorised as an article 8 Fund under the EU SFDR. As such, the Fund seeks to promote, among other characteristics, an environmental characteristic in the context of article 8 of the EU SFDR.

In recognition of the importance of aligning with global commitments on sustainability, EOS IM and the wider EOS IM Group also supports what foreseen by the Paris Agreement, and considers as guiding principles the provisions of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (the "**TCFD**"), the United Nations Global Compact (the "**UNGC**"), and the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals ("**UN SDGs**"), defined in the broader framework of the Agenda 2030.

The investment targeted by the Fund's and held as portfolio company investments, are aligned to companies that are able to contribute to one or more of the following UN SDGs. Although no benchmark has been designated to achieve the environmental or social characteristics promoted by the financial product these specifically include the following:

- Affordable and Clean Energy (SDG 7),
- the Industry Innovation and Infrastructure (SDG 9),
- the Sustainable Cities and Communities (SDG 11) and
- the Climate Action (SDG 13)

EOS IM also takes note of the actions of other relevant bodies, such as "**Invest Europe**". The Policy is also drafted in accordance with the principles described further in the EOS IM Group overarching Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

## 2. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to outline the approach to be taken by EOS IM and the wider EOS IM Group in relation to various aspects related to the clean energy strategy at the Portfolio Company level as per the utilisation of resources, emissions as a biproducts of the activity e.g., waste and greenhouse gases and for products used. It is recognised that the types and levels of consumption, output and products used will vary over the various stages of the lifecycle of each company (solar photovoltaic plants). The stages being:

- i) Development / Pre-construction (including sourcing and authorisation)
- ii) Construction (including design)
- iii) Operation
- iv) Divestment / Decommissioning

This Policy will be supplemented by procedures to be followed by EOS IM and relevant parties appointed at the various stages to support the whole investment lifecycle process.

4

### 3. Resource, Emissions & Products

The key areas considered by this Policy are:

**Resource Consumption & Management** 

- Energy
- Water

Emissions / Waste

- Greenhouse gas
- Waste management and Biproducts of activity

#### Products

- Materials
- Manufacture
- Installation
- Recycling

# 4. Stages and Impact

The stages of the lifecycle will have different levels of impact, as summarised below.

Phase	Utilisation
Development / Pre- Construction	Impact - Minimal utilisation of resources and emissions/waste Generation of resources – Nil
Construction	Impact – Maximum level of impact across the lifecycle, requiring the combination of materials and construction activities. The activity will create requirements for resources and emissions in the manufacture of the solar panels, trackers, inverters, and other products required for the solar plant to function. The transportation to the site and the construction will require resources and create emissions.
	Generation of resources – Contribution to the local community and wider business environment through employment and other generative activities as part of construction. This provides also indirect positive financial impacts, in addition to the direct contributions, such as local infrastructure and money flows to support the local economy (e.g., hospitality sector).
Operation	Impact – The solar plants will require a minimal resource consumption to operate, e.g., personnel to perform maintenance, security, and transportation of personnel to perform maintenance. Emissions - The solar plants will generate minimal emissions when operating.
	Generation of resources – The solar plant will be a significant net generator of energy, during the operational hours.
Divestment	In the event that the plants are divested, prior to decommissioning, the solar plants will continue as per the Operation stage.
Decommissioning	Impact – The decommissioning stage will be the second most intense stage in terms of resource consumption. Provided the construction design and the materials used are appropriate, the emissions impact should be minimal. Materials should be largely recyclable. During the decommissioning phase, the design and methodology is

required to have a reduced environmental impact on the land, habitats, and minimised required energy
consumption.
Generation – Nil

## 5. Addressing and Minimising Impacts

EOS IM to address the ESG impacts has adopted the following approach.

#### **5.1 Baseline Requirements**

In order for an investment to be approved, it must meet the baseline requirements related to ESG.

#### 5.1.1 Pre-Development Planning Process

Where the Fund has invested and/or is in partnership with a developer, to conduct the development planning for authorisation applications of potential sites for authorisation, EOS IM will endeavour to be actively involved in aspects of the process. This will include areas such as the intended design for the power plant, the locations and components used for the solar panels. Such involvement is designed to ensure that the appropriate ESG positive measures and requirements are incorporated into the planning and hence authorisation submissions.

Efficient and effective design and components, can lead to improved and more efficient utilisation of resources. Thus reducing wastage, consumption of resources and emissions, as well increase production. By increasing production there is a greater offset of carbon emissions arising from electricity production.

It is to the noted that post acquisition during the Ready to Build stage, there is still the opportunity to revamp and improve PV plant plans for changes in technology or other factors that may impact on and/or enhance the ESG benefit requirements.

#### 5.1.2 Power Plant Authorisation / Permitting Process

In order to obtain the authorisation and relevant permits required to build and operate the solar plants, the application process includes the consideration and confirmation of various ESG topics. In particular, for the permit and authorisation to be granted, the process requires the applicant to provide evidence that the project will meet criteria concerning:

- baseline environmental and social conditions of the planned construction
- endangered species and sensitive ecosystems
- pollution prevention
- cumulative impacts of existing projects

- socio-economic impacts
- protection of cultural property
- health, safety, and security.

Each of this topic is required to be specifically analysed, evaluated, and satisfactorily addressed as part of the assessment performed by the independent public authorities before the granting of permits and authorisations.

These requirements, therefore, are to form part of the investment assessment in determining if project is to be progressed.

#### 5.1.3 Due Diligence

The Investment Policy requirement is for the independent due diligence reports to be provided and for there to be no material issues, which the project is unable to address.

#### a) ESG Due Diligence

The ESG Due Diligence ("**DD**") activities are conducted by a combination of internal and external professionals. The primary and independent assessment being performed by external ESG expert service providers, for the assessment by the Investment Team and the Investment Committee. The ESG DD will incorporate consideration of the resource utilisation and management within the assessment.

As part of the overarching DD process, all projects require ESG DD assessments to confirm the inclusion of the requirements set out under the authorisation and permitting processes, as well as adherence to the EU Directive standards. Investments by the Fund are restricted to EU jurisdictions and therefore the EU Directive standards are mandatory as part of the investment process.

The external ESG DD being conducted through a combination of screening, company assessment, interviews and reporting.

The ESG DD standards applied across a project assessment will include, be aligned with and assessed against a range of standards and guidelines including but not limited to:

- EU Taxonomy
- SASB and GRI topics
- Italian Legislative Decree 254/2016,
- Implementing Directive2014/95/EU of the European Parliament with regards to the disclosure of non-financial and diversity information by certain large undertakings and groups; and

7

• Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD)

The areas it will consider encompass but not be limited to:

- Environmental Impact Assessment
- Principal Adverse Impact Assessment
- Planning permission

- Emissions
- Environmental and social management system requirements
- Circular economy
- Supply chain
- Human rights
- Stakeholder engagement
- Grievance mechanism
- Independent monitoring and reporting programme
- Corporate integrity
- Reporting & transparency

#### b) Technical Due Diligence

As part of the overarching DD requirements, all projects require Technical DD assessments by independent external experts, to confirm the inclusion of the requirements set out to construct the project, including the competency of the key contractors to deliver the construction (build and parts), meeting the required specifications (including additional requirements set by the relevant authorities e.g. arising from the Environmental Impact Assessment). The delivery of a project which meets the requirements including ESG being a baseline requirement.

#### **5.2 ESG Operational Requirements during Phases of Investment**

The management of the key areas topics to be addressed include the following requirements.

#### 5.2.1 Energy Consumption / Management

Clean energy plants both generate and utilise energy, during their lifecycle. The primary objective of the investments is to generate clean energy, reducing the carbon footprint of consumption, which at the same time creating an economic return. The plants will require a low level of electricity consumption to operate, drawing resource from suppliers.

During the Development / Pre-construction phase there is minimal utilisation, except for travel to potential locations. There are no specific measures taken to reduce consumption except for encouraging travel to be kept to a minimum.

During the Construction and Operational phase the key actions to reduce and manage energy consumption should include:

- Design: to be efficient to construct, reducing overall time and resource required. To incorporate the future requirements for decommissioning, in a manner that is effective to reduce ESG impact across all areas.
- Purchasing: to use reputable major suppliers with an ESG approach, to purchase materials, in a manner designed to have lower manufacturing impacts, long term life, recyclability

and strong ratios for productivity to reduce the offsets against energy consumption during construction and decommissioning.

- Installation: to be carefully planned and monitored in a manner designed to make the construction efficient. Thus, minimising time and energy consumption requirements.
- Energy consumption: to be minimised for example by using where applicable self-powered offices equipped with PV panels installed on the roof.
- Local Companies: where feasibly local companies will be utilised and local human resource, reducing energy consumption arising from travel.

During the Operation, the solar plant will be a significant generator of clean energy. Only minimal consumption of energy is required to operate the facilities and support maintenance (e.g., security cameras, monitoring system, etc.).

During Divestment (if occurs prior to decommissioning), the status is the same as for the Operation phase.

During the Decommissioning phase, the solar plant will be a consumer of energy, having ceased its generating function. The solar plants are constructed in a manner that during the decommissioning phase has a reduced environmental impact on the land, habitats, enhanced recyclability of materials and minimised required energy consumption. In this phase, the key actions to reduce and manage energy consumption should include:

- Design: at construction, the design is to specifically take into account the efficiency at decommissioning, reducing overall time and resource required. Through the incorporation of the future requirements for decommissioning, it is intended to effectively to reduce ESG impact across all areas and the energy consumption required to return the land to the appropriate standards.
- Purchasing: through the original purchasing methodology the materials are required to have a high level of recyclability, linked to the efficient removal.
- De-construction: to be carefully planned and monitored in a manner designed to make the de-construction and land reclamation energy efficient. Thus, minimising time and energy consumption requirements.
- Local Companies: where feasibly local companies will be utilised and local human resource, reducing energy consumption arising from travel.

The solar plants are constructed in a manner that during the decommissioning phase, has a reduced environmental impact on the land, habitats, enhanced recyclability of materials and minimised required energy consumption.

#### 5.2.2 Water Consumption & Management

In addition to the legal requirements related to managing and protecting water supplies, the ESG approach is in overarching terms to (i) minimise water consumption, (ii) reduce wastage and (iii) prevent pollution and contaminants. As part of the management of the local water supply, assessment is conducted against the climate change benchmarked scenarios, as part for weather impact through the potential for flooding. The assessment considering the location and the final constructed plants.

Aligned generally with energy consumption, the primary areas of consumption will be during the manufacturing, construction, and de-commissioning phases. The same key approaches are taken in relation effective design, planning and usage.

Usage will be monitored to assist in the management of the resource.

It is anticipated that the building, operation and decommissioning of the solar plants will draw upon the local water supplies. Thus, the local area will not be significantly impacted by the water consumption from the solar plant at other times. The design, planning and implementation for the construction and decommissioning are to take this into account, using techniques to manage consumption, reduce wastage, manage the potential for pollution and contamination. In addition to always meet the required national and local regulations and consent requirements.

These techniques include but are not limited to the management of the abstraction of the water, filtration/extraction/settlement treatment, appropriate drainage facilities being established, control of storage and discharging of water and other chemicals, water run-off assessments, avoidance of spillages and the use of chemicals which are potential pollutants, appropriate disposal of such contaminants.

During the Operational stage of the plants, the water consumption will be relatively limited, involving usage for activities such as cleaning the solar panels to maintain efficient electricity production. Such activities are monitored and planned to optimise the efficiency, whilst minimise the water utilisation.

#### 5.2.3 Green House Gas Emissions and Management

Aligned with the energy consumption the GHG emissions primarily arise from the manufacture of the components, construction, and decommissioning. During the operational phase of the investment, the solar plants, through their energy generation will result in them being net reducers of GHG emissions.

The Policy is to reduce the impact of GHG emissions during the manufacturing stage thorough the purchasing policy, using major suppliers with ESG policies and long-lasting efficient components. This is to minimise the impact of the GHG emissions over the lifetime of the solar plant and when compared the electricity levels generated per PV unit.

The impact during the construction phase is to be managed through the efficiently planned programme and the application of effective construction techniques.

During the decommissioning stage, the impact is reduced and managed through the methodology used for the construction to ease removal (with minimised impact to the landscape) and the use of PV panels which can be recycled efficiently.

Usage will be assessed and estimated to assist in the management of the resource.

#### 5.2.4 Waste Management

Waste is considered to be any substance or object which the holder intends to discard or is required to discard.

Aligned generally with energy consumption, the primary periods when waste management requirements are at the highest will be during the manufacturing, construction and decommissioning phases, including the manufacture of the products to be used in the construction of the solar plant. The same key approaches are taken in relation effective design, planning and usage.

The objective is for the actions required at these phases to: (i) eliminate through design, (ii) reduce through planned minimisation techniques, (iii) reuse materials, (iv) recycle / recover waste and (v) safely dispose of waste.

The impact during the manufacturing stage is reduced thorough the purchasing policy, using major suppliers with ESG policies and manage waste ethically.

The Policy requires that waste management is handled appropriately, avoiding and preventing material impacts on the flora and fauna, local habitats, landscape and local community. Contractors during the construction phase are required to operate in a manner to maintain manageable levels of waste, appropriately stored on-site, prevent spillage, avoid scenarios such as wind-blown solid wastes and to manage the recycling and safe removal of waste by certified contractors.

Particular care is to be taken in relation to identifying and restricting the usage of materials which will give rise to hazardous waste. The handling of such waste being managed appropriately in a manner designed to ensure appropriate handling and/or other potential issues that may arise.

Usage will be monitored and documented to assist in the management of the resource.

#### 5.2.5 Other Emissions

During the Construction and Decommissioning phase, the activities will give rise to other forms of emissions such as dust, emissions (other than GHG), odours, noise and light. Depending upon the location of the site, the impact of these emissions may vary on the local community and area. The objective is to minimise the impact and amount of such emissions.

The primary methodology for the prevention of such issues is through the same key approaches that are taken in relation effective design, planning and usage.

Techniques to be applied will include but not be limited to dust suppression through considered location of site stores, location of travel routes, application of reduce speeds of vehicles, damping down dust with water, use of efficient machinery to reduce emissions, location of lighting.

Other emissions will be monitored and documented to assist in the management of the resource.

#### **5.2.6 Products, including Components and Building Materials**

When procuring materials for the construction, installation and operation of the solar plant, there is a requirement to consider the:

- Suppliers
- Design & Construction (to be both ESG positive and efficient)
- Materials.

This is designed to ensure that they both meet the criteria for the project in terms of deliverability, functionality and ESG.

The purchase policy for the major supplies including solar panels, tracker and inverters, requires the selected suppliers to be included within the technical due diligence. Suppliers being selected with a sound reputation and professional approach to manufacturing the products in accordance with the appropriate legal requirements. Major suppliers will be required to have an established an ESG approach. The assessment is intended and designed to consider significant social factors such as the prohibition of dealing with companies which breach the requirements to prevent modern day slavery.

Materials are to be subject to assessment, covering areas such as but not limited to: (i) sourcing, (ii) sustainability, (iii) nature of materials (e.g. toxicity), (iv) ability to efficiently use the materials, (v) longevity, (vi) recyclability and (vii) disposal (when required).

A key requirement is to prevent the usage of prohibited substances, reduce usage of advisory substances (are not banned, but prefer not to use) and use preferred substances. Where feasible materials which are recyclable will be used, maintaining the longer term ESG viability of the solar plant.

The purchase policy for the major supplies including solar panels, tracker, and inverters, requires the selected suppliers to be included within the technical due diligence. The efficiency of installation reducing the resourcing usage, in addition to the effectiveness of the construction of the solar plant.

The careful planning for each stage of the construction will include the assessment of materials, to avoid situations of over or mis-ordering, which may lead to unnecessary wastage. This is managed by the contractor and is part of the contractor obligations.

The materials will be assessed against the criteria set for each project, to assist in the management of the resource.

# 6. Change Management & Policy Review

This Policy will be subject to review on at least a yearly basis unless an amendment is required sooner. Any material change to the Policy is to be approved by the EOS IM Board.